MINUTES
Approved by the Committee
Committee on Federalism
Wednesday, July 30, 2025
9:00 A.M.

Room EW42
Boise, Idaho

Members in attendance: Cochair Representative Boyle and Representatives Horman, Shepherd,
Hawkins, and Mathias; Cochair Senator Burtenshaw and Senators Lakey, Harris, Carlson, and Ruchti;
Legislative Services Office staff Ryan Bush, Francis Lippit, Casey Hartwig, and Jennifer Kish.

Others in attendance: Colby Cameron - ITD; Viki Puraly; Heidi Smith.

NOTE: Presentations and handouts provided by the presenters/speakers are posted to the Idaho
Legislature's website https://legislature.idaho.gov/sessioninfo/2025/interim and copies of those items
are on file at the Legislative Services Office in the State Capitol. Recordings of the meeting may be
available under the committee's listing on the website.

Welcome/Approval of Minutes

Cochair Boyle called the meeting to order at 9:06 a.m.; a silent roll call was taken. Cochair Boyle
asked for a motion on the minutes. Senator Lakey moved to approve the minutes of the September
25, 2024 meeting; Senator Harris seconded the motion. The motion passed by voice vote.

Role of Office of Species Conservation

Mike Edmondson, Administrator, Office of Species Conservation (OSC), gave an Office of Species
Conservation Overview.

e Sen. Lakey referred to a U of | sage-grouse study demonstrating that grazing does not negatively
impact sage-grouse, and asked whether Mr. Edmondson saw an impact from that study at the
state or federal level. Mr. Edmondson replied that he was working on incorporating it into the
resource management plan with the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) for sage-grouse.

Josh Uriarte, Species Program Manager and Policy Advisor, OSC, continued the presentation (slide 8)
discussing livestock depredation compensation and funding timelines.

e Cochair Boyle asked for clarity surrounding government trappers not being state trappers. Mr.
Uriarte said government trappers are through the Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service
(APHIS) department, which is under the Department of Agriculture.

e Sen. Lakey inquired about response time when a federal trapper is called to complete an
investigation. Mr. Uriarte replied it was usually within 48 hours, but frequently 24 hours or less,
and the investigation is completed the same day.

e Rep. Shepherd asked how the value of an animal is determined. Mr. Uriarte explained that he
uses the "real market value" as reported by the Idaho Cattle Association or Idaho Wool Growers
Association. Rep. Shepherd asked why money was being sent back when claims were denied. Mr.
Uriarte said money was not sent back but if there are not enough claims, the federal government
will request the money back due to not operating under the stipulation of the grant.

e Sen. Carlson asked how many trappers or inspectors are in the state and whether there was
trouble with proof of complaints. Mr. Uriarte responded that there was legislation being formed
to create an appeals board, which could deal with compensation claims. He added that the
number of investigators in the state was about 17.

Jace Hogg, Federal Lands Coordinator, OSC, continued the presentation (slide 13) discussing his
duties and programs.


https://legislature.idaho.gov/sessioninfo/2025/interim/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250730_cof_02_EDMONDSON FederalismCommittee_FINAL_29July2025.pdf
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250730_cof_02_EDMONDSON FederalismCommittee_FINAL_29July2025.pdf

Sen. Lakey asked about an attempt to make the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process
more streamlined, and whether that was being implemented. Mr. Hogg replied that NEPA still
largely followed guidelines for Bureau of Land Management (BLM) and the US Forest Service.

Cochair Boyle asked about the "Roadless Rule" and how it pertained to Idaho. Mr. Hogg
explained that aside from Colorado, the rest of the country followed the 2001 rule. He added
that the Idaho Rule intended to create more flexibility. Cochair Boyle noted that the September 8
Federalism meeting would cover the Road Rule more in depth.

Cochair Burtenshaw reflected on a past meeting that discussed animals missing during grazing
season and noted the reasoning behind HB 592 (2024). He inquired what to do with bears that
do kill and about the termination of grizzly bears. Mr. Edmondson confirmed that OSC had no
formal role in the process. He added that grizzlies are federally listed and the ultimate decision to
delist is the duty of a federal regulatory agency.

Federal Education Funding Update

Austin Reid, Federal Affairs Education Advisor, NCSL, joined the discussion and provided a Federal
Education Funding Update.

Rep. Mathias sought clarity as to whether there was a more common definition of homeless
children/students, as the U.S. Department of Education used a more expansive one. Mr. Reid
replied that it would be defined through the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act. Rep.
Mathias, referring to information on slides 7 and 8, asked for clarity about when a state opts in
whether it has to identify its authorized SGOs at the time of application or after applying. Mr.
Reid recalled that the state provides the list on January 1 of each year and explained that the
state would opt in first, then it would go through the process of verifying the eligible organization.
He added that timelines are in the statutory language.

Nuclear Activities of the Trump Administration

After an introduction by Rep. Horman, John Wagner, Director, Idaho National Laboratory (INL),
provided a INL Accelerated Nuclear Development and Deployment presentation.

Sen. Harris noted the increased demand for energy and asked Mr. Wagner when nuclear could
start to be used commercially. Mr. Wagner replied that there are big reactors providing power
currently, but there is much interest in small modular and micro reactors. He stated that the
micro reactors will be operating as early as 2026.

Rep. Shepherd observed that the Navy had several nuclear reactor carriers, which he viewed

as essentially mobile nuclear reactor power plants. He asked about the megawatts in a micro
reactor and whether they were in the same scale as the power output in the aircraft carrier. Mr.
Wagner confirmed that the Navy operated about 100 small modular reactors, but micro reactors
are even smaller and operate differently with more severe requirements than the needs on the
commercial side. Rep. Shepherd asked if the Navy had to do environmental impact studies. Mr.
Wagner replied that he suspected they did. Rep. Shepherd touched on the possibility of reducing
costs if the regulation was eliminated. Mr. Wagner agreed, but stated that the regulation should
be implemented in a more thoughtful and reasonable way.

Sen. Lakey agreed that on the commercial scale "everything sounded great," and asked whether
a grid serviceable facility in Idaho was viable. Mr. Wagner replied it would be a utility decision;
he explained how Idaho Power would look at its portfolio and make a decision. Sen. Lakey
asked whether the study showed whether any risk from radiation impacted current storage
practices. Mr. Wagner clarified the study was about health effects from radiation, and he further
expounded on radiation protection limits.

Rep. Mathias referred to an application that was put forward by a company to the BLM and
NRC, and the company wanted to buy six modular reactors. He explained he tried to search for
the company online and it came up as "private." He asked about the role of the state in these

COMMITTEE ON FEDERALISM
Wednesday, July 30, 2025 — Minutes — Page 2


https://legislature.idaho.gov/sessioninfo/2024/legislation/H0592/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250730_cof_03_REID_7 30 25 Federal Education Update- Idaho Committee on Federalism.pdf
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250730_cof_03_REID_7 30 25 Federal Education Update- Idaho Committee on Federalism.pdf
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250730_cof_04_WAGNER_2025-07-30_ Idaho Legislative Federalism Interim Committee _final.pdf

type of proposed commercial transactions. Mr. Wagner said he is interacting with a lot of
companies, and some are more credible than others. He advised the committee to "not be
too concerned" because there were processes, as well as the Nuclear Regulatory Commission,
that all companies must go through.

e Rep. Horman asked how Idaho could assist in recommendations for policies or investments.
Mr. Wagner noted that the Nuclear Energy Institute provides an annual report that highlights
what each state is doing to attract nuclear energy, and it was full of ideas to help the state in
considering its involvement.

Update of STAR Card and Idaho Driver's Licenses
Lisa McClellan, ITD, gave an Idaho STAR Card Update.

e Sen. Carlson inquired about the age to receive a STAR card considering traveling minors. Ms.
McClellan reported that it was 18 years of age and above.

e Sen. Lakey expressed concern that a constituent told him he had to have a STAR card. Ms.
McClellan replied that training is provided to DMV agents that a STAR card is a choice. Sen.
Lakey asked how many choose to get a STAR card. Ms. McClellan reported that it was about
59% of individuals.

The committee took a lunch break from 12:04 p.m. to 1:35 p.m.

Fiscal Impact of HR 1 (OBBBA)

Brian Wanko, Director Budgets and Revenue, NCSL, walked the committee through a Reconciliation
Update (Fiscal Impact of Congressional HR 1).

e Rep. Horman asked whether NCSL would be doing any "50 state reports" that would help the
committee understand the impact to Idaho's revenues. Mr. Wanko replied that he is processing
and digesting all the impacts and noted that it will take a while for implementation of the act. At
this point, he did not plan on any 50 state report. He suggested a resource such as the Federal
Programs Funding and Fiscal Accountability (FFIS), which provides tracking for federal funds.

Update on USFWS Camas Refuge Water Issue

Cochair Burtenshaw provided a handout to the committee, titled USFWS Camas Wildlife Refuge
Water Issue. It referenced a small area in Idaho in his district where there is a struggle to maintain
enough water. He supported it to be dealt with at the state level and, hence, the purpose of
Senate Joint Memorial 104 (2025).

e Rep. Hawkins asked whether permission was required when water was cleaned out of other
channels. Sen. Burtenshaw was unaware of the process for other channels. He noted that
everything removed from the channel must be hauled away.

e Rep. Shepherd asked about the possibility of senior water rights holders at Mud Lake who
could file suit, or whether the attorney general (AG) could be used for legal counsel. Cochair
Burtenshaw responded that the AG had not been addressed; he reported that the land had been
a ranch at one time and had water rights back to the 1940s.

e Sen. Lakey asked whether cleaning out the channel solved the problem with the water flow.
Cochair Burtenshaw affirmed it would solve the problem. He expounded on the size of the
channel and the difficulty in getting water through the channel with the amount of debris in
it. Sen. Lakey asked whether any legal liability was being explored. Cochair Burtenshaw was
not aware of any, but noted that a permit was requested and was anticipated to take 2-4 years
to receive.

e Cochair Boyle asked how many acre feet of irrigation rights were involved. Cochair Burtenshaw
replied that the total over the 24,000 acre area was 2.25 feet per acre. Cochair Boyle supported
a letter explaining the issue and stating "you must deliver the water." Rep. Horman noted that

COMMITTEE ON FEDERALISM
Wednesday, July 30, 2025 — Minutes — Page 3


https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250730_cof_05_ITD_REAL ID 7-2025.pdf
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250730_cof_06_WANKO_NCSL - 2025 - Idaho Presentation - July 30, 2025.pdf
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250730_cof_06_WANKO_NCSL - 2025 - Idaho Presentation - July 30, 2025.pdf
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250730_cof_07_BURTENSHAW_Camas WR and Mudd Lake.pdf
https://legislature.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/sessioninfo/2025/interim/250730_cof_07_BURTENSHAW_Camas WR and Mudd Lake.pdf
https://legislature.idaho.gov/sessioninfo/2025/legislation/SJM104/

the committee had sent correspondence in the past commenting on federal rules and regulations,
and expressed her interest in having a letter drafted.

Cochair Boyle asked for a motion on drafting such a letter. Rep. Horman moved that the committee
draft a letter regarding the concerns discussed about the Camas Wildlife Refuge; Rep. Shepherd
seconded the motion. The motion passed by unanimous voice vote.

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:40 p.m.

COMMITTEE ON FEDERALISM
Wednesday, July 30, 2025 — Minutes — Page 4



